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Newarthill Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

The Dircctors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 October 2018,

Principal activities

Newarthill Ltd is a holding company whose principal activity is the co-ordination of the Group's activitics in construction,
PPP opcrations and property development. The Group comprises a number of subsidiaries including Sir Robert McAlpine
Limited, a leading building and civil engincering construction company operating primarily within the United Kingdom.

The Group is celebrating its 150th anniversary during 2019 and this longevity reflects an ability to understand the needs of
clicnts and wider socicty, innovating and adapling in responsc to a changing world. It also speaks to the family culture, the
catreprencurial spirit and the enduring valucs that run through the Group's businesses.

Fair review of the business
The Group’s key financial indicators are tumover and profit before tax and these are:

* Group turnover was £870.5m (2017:£942.5m)

« The profit on ordinary activitics before taxation and exceptional items of £21.0m (2017: £16.9m).

« After cxceptional items for losscs on organisationa! redesign of the construction business, the impact of closing a defined
benefit pension scheme (o (urther accrual and a prepayment penalty incurred when a PPP subsidiary of the Group repaid the
entircty of its scnior debt carlicr than forccast, the Group made a profit before tax of £0.7m (2017: £20.2m Loss after
cxceptional items for losscs on cnergy from waste projects and the rccognition of exceptional group pension schemeé
labilitics).

Constructlion )

Following the appointnient of Paul Hamer as Chiel Exccutive of Sir Robert McAlpine Limited in July 2017 a stratcgic
review was undcertaken to best position the Group's construction busincss for future growth and opporwnities, This resulted
in a new five ycar strategy launched in 2018 which prioritiscs:

» Focuscd, profitablc growth

« Trusted clicnt and partaer relationships -
« A robust and resilient pontfolio of work across chosen markets

« Holding industry leading positions in chosen sectors

« A digital transformation by hamessing data and icchnology to inspire and improve

» Becoming the best place to work.

All of which will support Sir Robert McAlpine Limited’s ambition to deliver on its vision of ‘Proudly Building Britain's
Futurc Heritage'.

The UK construction market remains highly competitive but despite this backdrop, the Group’s construction business has
performed well and profits have again increased, albeit construction margins currently rcmain below its medium-term
cxpectations. During 2018 the Group continucd to focus on its cultural change programme aligning all its people behind a
clear strategic vision. Considering the needs of clients is at the construction business’s corc and makes sure it delivers
optimal value through mutual trust and collaboration. The fundamental commitment to delivering quatity, safely, on time,
and sustainably arc beginning to deliver increased profits.

The Group is proud to have delivered a diverse portfolio of projects for its clicnts and looking forward remains cautious but
optimistic about the construction business’s prospects in 2019 as its order book continucs to grow ycar on ycar.

Capital Ventures
There were no movements in the Group's portfolio of PPP invesiments during the year - ali of which arc being actively
managed and arc performing well.

With all of the concessions now in the operational phasc, the focus continucs to be on the delivery of scrvices through the
rclevant project companics. The service delivery of the two road concessions continues to be provided effectively by the
Group's construction business, whilst all of the facilitics management scrvices on the other concessions arc being delivered
by third party contractors.

The activitics in this scctor continuc with limited ncw activities while the focus has been on adding value to the existing
portfolio.
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Newarthill Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Taxation
The group has a small tax credit of £0.9m (2017 - £0.7m).

Cash and Borrowings
The Group had cash balances of £162.2m (2017: £205.9m) at the year end. All the senior loan borrowings of £139.0m (2017

- £177.3m) represented non-recourse debt of which £134.0m (2017 - £172.3m) is in our wholly-owned PPP project
companies. The reduction in borrowings and cash is in part due to a PPP subsidiary of the Group repaying the entire £34.2m
of its senior debt earlier than expected.

QOutlook
The Group continues to have substantial cash balances and with only non-recourse borrowing in its PPP project companies,

is well placed to exploit opportunities within both the construction and development sectors as they arise. The Group has no
debt facilities that are repayable on demand and the Group is not subject to any debt covenants or other restrictions. The
Group will continue to prioritise profitability and risk mitigation over turnover growth,

Principal risks and uncertainties

The approach (o identification and management of principal risks is integral to the delivery of our strategic objectives. The
risk management approach adopted is not designed to climinate risk entirely, but provides a means to identify, prioritise and
manage risks and opportunities in accordance with the Group’s risk appetite.

The current principal risks of the Group are:

Management of major contracts and bidding risk: the risks that the construction business is exposed to depend on the size
and complexity of the project together with the legal form of contract. The business maintains strong risk-based procedures
with particular emphasis on the tendering process and change management. There is a formal Risk and Investment
Committee which reviews and approves all opportunitics.

Contract execution risk:the Group is exposed to risks that could impact on the delivery of contracts to our clicnts on time, on
budget and to the rcquired specification. Rigorous policies and processes have been introduced for mobilisation, monitoring
and management of contract performance and maintains a focus on identifying and reporting risks at every stage of the
contract. Regular contract reviews are undcrtaken at a number of levels within the business. The Group monitors the
performance of joint arrangements, subcontractors and suppliers throughout the contract.

The relention and development of high-quality staff: the availability of skilled resources to match the needs of the industry is
vital to the success and effective operation of our Group. An active People strategy is being deploycd addressing, amongst
other things, our employee proposition, engagement, succession planning and inclusion.

Defincd Benefit Pension Scheme: the Group maintains two defined benefit pension schemes, both of which have a deficit for
which robust recovery plans are in place - see note 23. The Group closed the larger of the two schemes to new entrants and
future accrual in the latter parnt of 2017.

Macroeconomic and geopolitical changes: the ongoing uncertainty in the market as a result of Brexit, its potential impact on
labour availability and the risk of increased costs due to currency fluctuations, is a concern for the industry as a whole.
During this period, we have applicd significant effort to build a Brexit mitigation plan to offset any potential detrimental
impact that may occur. The business monitors and reviews this and other macroeconomic and geopolitical risks on a regular
basis.

Health and safety incident: the Group is involved in activities that have the potential to result in personal or environmental
harm, operational loss, regulatory, legal or financial penalties, and/or reputational loss. The Group has a primary focus on
health and safety and continues to invest in the functional leadership, management policies and procedures.

Interest rate and financial instrument risks: The Group carries no significant debt other than non-recourse borrowing in
project companies. Interest rate risk in those project companies is managed by interest rate swaps or fixed rate borrowing.
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Newarthill Limited
Strategic Report for the Yearf'l_fnded 31 October 2018

Treasury risk management: Forcign currency exposure in lrddmg activities is -mitigated by entering into forward exchange
rate contracts. The Group reviews its cash and investments on a regularbasis.

Competition: the sectors in which thc Group operdles are highly competitive and operate on low margins. Failurc to competc
cffectively and evolve to clients’ necds increases the risk of losing market share and the future viability of the business, The
business conlinually monitors the séctors in which the Group operaics, pursing opportunitics in which compctitive
advantages exist. In addition, our key account client focus ensures we addpt, in an agile manner, to their nceds.

Robust and secure systems cnvironment where data is protected: there is a rigk that the loss of key systems or data through a
lack of resilience could have a material impact on the operations of the Group The Group has robust sccurity protocols
embedded in i1s current IT cnvironment, which are periodically stress’ lcslcd internally and by third parties.

Governance risk control and mmgauon The challcngmg of the pnncxpal risks and uncentaintics forms part of the work of the

“audit commiltec. The audit commiiltec also satisfies itself as to the independence of the auditor as well as -fobustly
challenging accounting policics, judgements and estimates, and the Direclors' assessmienl of whether it'is appfopriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Approved by the Board on ’lf/é/'?and signed on its behal{ by:

Cullum MéAlpinc
Dircclor
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Newarthill Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

The Dircclors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 October
2018. '

Dircctors of the Group

The dircctors who held office during the year and to the date of this report, unless otherwisc stated were as follows:
Th‘e Hon. David M McAlpine

Cullum McAlpine

Sir Andrew W McAlpine

Gavin M McAlpine BA, MSc (rcsigned 31 December 2018)

David S Jenkins FCA

Donald Joyce CA

Miles C Shelley BA, ACA (resigned 31 October 2018)

Robert I W Wotherspoon B.Eng., ACA (appointed 31 October 2018)

Dividends
No interim dividends werce paid during the year (2017: £nil). The Directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend.

Financial instruments

Objectives and policies

The Group's activities cxpose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. The use
of financial derivatives to manage these risks is governed by the Group's policies approved by the board of Directors. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Price risk, credit risk, liguidity risk and cash flow risk

The Group's principal risks and uncertainties are included in the Strategic Report.

Employment of disabled persons

[t is Group policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where they have
the necessary aptitude and abilities. Where employees become disabled, the Group endeavours to continue their employment
provided there are dutics they can perform despite their disabilities.

It is also Group policy that there should be equal opportunities in the area of employment without discrimination. Employees
are trcated equally and fairly, and selection for training, promotion, carcer progression and other benefits is taken solely on
merit and ability to perform against role profiles.

Employece involvement

The Group provides information to its employees both of a general company nature and to encourage awareness of financial,
economic, strategic and other factors which affect the Group. We achieve this through formal and informal briefings, our
Group magazine and our intranet.

Future developments
Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Repon and form part of this report by cross-reference.
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‘Newarthill Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Going concern

The Group has consxderablc financial resources and carrics only non-recourse debt. The core construction operations of the
Group are characterised by long term contfacts and the level of activity in relation to these is sceure into the foresecable
future.

Afier making enquiries, the Directors have a rcasonable expectation lhal the. Group has adcqualc resources to conhnuc in
operational existence for the foresceable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing ihe
Annual Report and financial statements:

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies note in the financiat
statcments. .

Dircectors' liabilitics
Third party indemnity provisions madc by the Company were in force during the ycar for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company and the Directors of the Company's subsidiaries.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audn ‘information and 1o establish that the Company's auditor is awaré.of that information. The Directors confirm that there
‘is no relevant information that they know of and of which théy know the auditor is unaware.

Reappointment of auditor
“The auditor, Delditte LLP is decmed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006

Approved by the Board on 14/6//7and signed on its behalf by:

Kevin J vPca_'rs
Company secretary
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Newarthill Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations. '

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statcmnents for cach financial year. Under that law the Directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Uniled Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 102 "The Financial Reponting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland”. Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

« sclect suitablc accounting policics and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and accounting estimates that arc reasonable and prudent;

* state whether applicable United Kihgdom Accounting Standards have been follo;avcd. subject to any malerial departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« preparce the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriatc to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to
cnsure that the financial statements comply with the Companics Act 2006. They arc also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the’ Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities. )

. - Page 7



Newarthill Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Newarthill Limited
Report on the ahdit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statcments of Newarthill Limited (the “parent company’) and its subsidiarics (the ‘group’):

* give a truc and fair vicw of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 October 2018 and of the
group’s profit for the year then ended; _

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountinig Practlice, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable’in the UK and Republic of Ireland™; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprisc:

* the consolidated profit and loss account; ’

« thc consolidated statement of comprehensive income; -
» the consolidated and parcnt company balance shcets;

« the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;

* the consolidated cash flow statement; and

« the related notes 1 1o 32,

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicablc law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standurd applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internitional Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicablc law. Qur
responsibilitics under thosc standards arc further described in the auditor's responsibilitics for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We arc independent of the group and the parent company ‘in accordance with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements. We belicve that the audit evidence
wc have obtained is sufficient and appropriatc to providc a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:

* the dircctors’ use of thc going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statcments is not
appropriate; or

* the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identificd malerial uncertaintics that may cast significant
doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at Icast twelve months from the date when the financial statcmcnts arc authorised for issuc.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Other information

The directors arc responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual rcport, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thercon. Our opinion on the financial statcments
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurancc conclusion thereon.

In conncction wiih our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materiatly inconsistent with the financial statements or ous knowledge obtained in
the audil or otherwisc appears to be materially misstated, If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent malerial
misstatements, we arc required to determine whether there is @ material misstatement in the financial stalcments or a material
misstalcment of the other information. If, based on thc work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matcrial
misslatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Newarthill Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Newarthill Limited

Responsibilities of directors
As cxplained more fully in the Statement of Dircctors’ Responsibilities, the dircctors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisficd that they give a truc and fair vicw, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is nccessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether duc to fraud or crror.

In prcparing the financial statements, the dircctors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the parent Company's
ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maiters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors cither intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to ccase opcrations, or
have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilitics for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether duc to fraud or crror, and to issuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high lcvel of assurancc, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detcct a
material misstatement when il exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and arc considercd material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken‘on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilitics for the audit of the financial statcments is Jocated on the Financial Reporting
Council's websitc al www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilitics. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companics Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and Dircctors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statemnents are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parcnt Company and its environment obtained in the
coursc of the audit, we have not identified matcrial misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companics Act 2006 we arc required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or retumns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» the parent Company financial statements are not in agrecment with the accounting records and returns; or

+. _Centain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law aré notmade; or . . oo . e .

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Page 9



Newarthill Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Newarthill Limited

Usc of our rcport

This report is made solcly to thc Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companics
Act 2006. Our audit worl\ has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s mcembers thosc matters we are
required to state o them'in an auditor’s rcport and for no.other purpose. To the fullest extent permiued by law, we do not
“accepl or assume rcsponsnblluy 1o anyonc other than the Company and the Company’s membirs as a body, for our audit
work, for this rcport, or for the-opinions we have formed.

Matthew Hall, FCA (Scnlor Statutory Auditor)
For and on bishalf of Deléiite LLP, Stawtory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

14 June 2019
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Newarthill Limited

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Before Before
exceptional Exceptionat exceptional Exceptional
items items items items
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Turnover 3 867,68 ! 2,822 870,503 880,198 62,301 942,499
Cost of salcs (816,044) (2,822) (818,866)  (834,606)  (99,421) (934,027)
Gross profit/(loss) 51,637 - 51,637 45,592  (37.120) 8,472
Administrative cxpenses : (29,532) (15,280) (44,812) (30,769) - (30,769)
Other operating (losses)/gains 4 (505) - (505) 3,216 - 5216
Opcia(ing profit/(loss) 5 21,600 (15,280) 6,320 20,039  (37,120) (17,081)
Gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss account 402 - 402 (1,746) - (1,746)
Interest receivable and similarincome 7 2,826 - 2,826 6,016 - 6,016
Amounts written back/(off) investments 420 - 420 (1,430) - (1,430)
[nierest payable and similar charges 8 (13,762) (5,050) (18,8]2) (17,245) - (17,245)

(10,114) (5,050) (15,164) (14,405) - (14,405)
Share of profit of equity accounted
investees 16 9,504 - 9504 11,266 - 11,266
Profit/(loss) before lax 20,990 (20,330) 660 16,900 (37,120) (20,220)
Taxation 12 917 - 917 667 - 667
Profi/(loss) for the financial year 21,907 (20,330) 1,577 17,567  (37,120) (19,553)

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 19 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Newarthill Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Iricome for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

2018 2017

£000 £000
Statutory profit/(loss) Tor the ﬁhaqgvia‘l:fycar ) 1,577 ] (19,553)
Unrcalised loss on cash flow hedges V » 2,902 ' 82
Forcigh currcncy trunslation gains/(losscs) 1,611 (7,568)
Rcmgais‘u'rcmcn( gain/(loss) on deflincd bencefit pension and post-retircmient ]
medical schemgs net of deferred tax . L (159 . 37,361

3759 . 29815

Total comprehensive income for the year . 5,336 . 10,322
Total comprchensive income attributable to:
Equity shircholders of the company 5,336 10,322

The notes on pages 19 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Newarthill Limited

(Registration number: 01050970)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 October 2018

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investment properties
Investments

Other financial assels

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors due in fess than one year
Debtors due in more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling duc within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilitics

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities

Net asscts excluding employee benefits liabilities
Pension and other schemes

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Capital redemption reserve
Other reserves

Profit and loss account

Total cquity

Cullum McAlpine

Director

Note

13

15
16
17

18
19
19
20

21

21

22

23

24
25
25

- 25

d afthorised by the Board onl.q ..é/.i.?and signed on its behalf by:

2018 2017
£000 £000

4,744 5,729
42,638 35,966
22,519 20,366
50,195 44,360
28,501 27,614
148,597 134,035
57,398 59,272
185,253 199,627
179,327 182,183

162,179 205,893
584,157 646,975
(311,892) (323,780)
272,265 323,195
420,862 457,230
(206,180) (242,064)
(13,922) (28,547)
200,760 186,619
(123,486) (114,681)
77,274 71,938
7,104 7,104
15,171 15,171
990 (2,932)

54,009 52,595 -
77,274 71,938

The notes on pages. 19 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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o v
(Registration number: 01050970)

Newarthill Limited

Company Balance Sheet as at 31 October 2018

Fixed asscts
Investments

Current assets

Debiors duc in less than one year
Debtors due’in more than one year
Cash at bark and in:hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within onc ycar
Net current asscts

Total assets less current liabilities

Provisions for liabilities

Net asscts excluding pension schemes liability
Pension schemes

Net asscts

Capital and rescives
Called up share capital
Cagital redemption reserve
Profit and loss account

Total cquity

Note

16

19
19
20

24

23

24

25
25

2018, 2017
£000 £ 000

32,527 132,880
33,769 129,607
18,906 17,376
2,177 10,338
54,852 157,321
.. {46351) _ (132,818)
8,501 24,503
141,028 157,383
__A6D) (62)
140,966 157,321
(118,062) (109,098)
22,904 48,223
7,104 7,104
15,171 15171
_629 25,948

22,904 48,223 .

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companics Act 2006, no profit and loss account of the Company is presented.. The
Company made a loss after tax for the financial year of £25,139,000 (2017 - loss of £14,842,000).

Approved and authorised by the Board on “'yyﬂ; and signcd on its behalf by:

Cullum McAlpine

Director

The notes on pages 19 to 58 form an‘integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

At 1 November 2017
Profit for the {inancial year
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (see note 25)

Total comprehensive income
Transfers

At 3] October 2018

At | November 2016
Loss for the financial year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income (see note 25)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

At 31 October 2017

Newarthill Limited

Equity attributable to the parent company

Capital redemption

Profit and loss

Share capital reserve Other reserves account Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000
7.104 15,171 (2,932) 52,595 71,938
- - - 1,577 1,577
. . 3,763 ) 3759
- - 3,763 1,573 5336
- - 159 (159) -
7,104 15,171 990 54,009 77.274
Capital redemption Profit and loss
Share capital reserve Other reserves account Total
£ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
7,104 15,171 4419 34922 61,616
- - (19,553) (19,553)
- - (1.351) 37,226 29,875
- - (7.351) 17,673 10,322
7,104 15,171 (2,932) 52,595 71,938

The notes on pages 19 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Newarthill Limited

Company Stateritent of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

At | Novcrber. 2017
~ Loss for the financial year

‘Other comprehensive income (sce note

25)
“Total.comprchensive income

Ai'31 Ociober 2018

At | November 2016
Loss for the ycar

Othcr comprehensive income (sce note
25)

Total comprehensive income

At 31 October 2017

Capital redemption

Profit and loss

Share capital reserve account Total
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000
'7;104 15,171 . ‘25.'9"48 ) 48,223
. . (25.139) (25,139)
- - _._(180) _.(180)
v = . = (25,319) (25,319)
7,104 15, IZv_l . 629 22,904
Capital redemption  Profit and loss
Share capital reserye account ‘Total
£000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
7,104 15,171 2,738 25,013
- . (14,842) (14,842)
- - 38,052 38052
- - 23,210 2_3}2!0
7,104 15171 25,948 48,223

The notes on pages 19 10.58 form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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Newarthill Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Note

Cash flows from opcrating activitics

Profiv/(loss) for the financial year

Adjustments to-cash flows from non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation 5
Financial instrument net gains through profit and loss

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5
Loss from sales of investment propertics

Profit/(loss) from revaluations of investment propertics

Loss/(profit) from disposals of investments

Finance income 7
Financc costs

Amounts written off investments

Share of profit of cquity accounted investees

Taxation 12

Working capital adjustments
Deerease/(increasce) in stocks
Decrease/(increase) in deblors
(Decreasc)/increase in creditors

Increase/(dccrease) in retirement and cmployee benefit obligations net of
actuarial changes 23

(Decrease)/increasc in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income

Cash from/(used in) opcrations

Corporation tax paid

Net cash from/(uscd in) operating activities

Cash flows from invesling activities
Interest and dividends reccived

Acquisition of tangible assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible assets

Acquisition of investment properties 15
Procceds from sale of investment properties

Proceeds from sale of listed and unlisted securitics

Cash receipts from repayment of loans, classificd as investing activities 16
Advances of loans, classified as investing activities 16
Acquisitions of investments in joint ventures and associates 16
Proceeds from salc of investments in joint ventures and associates

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

2018 2017

£000 £000
1,577 (19,553)
9,716 8,218
2,902 B
(369) (542)
884 .-
1,564 (4,666)
(10) (8
(2.826) 6,016)
18,812 18,675
(420) -
(9,504) (11,266)
©17) (667)
21,409 (15,825)
1,732 930)
20,273 (21,710)
(23,376) 25,039
5,602 (5.686)
(14,565) 19,565
9,884 (5,867)
20,959 (5.419)
(148) -
20,811 (5,414)
2,061 8,917
(10,934) (5,083)
885 990
3,797 (939)
2,466 1,122
10 789
1,484 4,596
(1,929) (661)
(579) -
1 7
(10,332) 9,738

The notes on pages 19 to 58 form an intcgral part of these financial statcments.
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‘Newarthill Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Cash flows from financing ac"!f?ilié's-
Interest paid
Repayment of other borrowing

Payments to finance Icast creditors
Net cash uscd in financing activitics

Net decreisc in cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents at the start of the ycar
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year

2018 2017

£000 £000
(15,058) (12,706)
(38,306) (6,671)
2.521) (1.842)
(55,885). (21,219)
(45,406) (16,895)
205,893 224,108
. 1,692 1,320
162,179 205,893

‘The notes on pages 19 to 58 form an integral pan of these financial stalcments.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

1 General information

The company is a privatc company limited by share capital, incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and
Wales. ;

The address of its registered office is:
Eaton Court

Maylands Avenue

Hemel Hempstead

Hentfordshire

HP2 7TR

United Kingdom

2 Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policics and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance
These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicablc in the UK and Republic of Ireland'.

Basis of prcparation
These financial statcments have becn prepared using the historical cost convention except, as disclosed in the accounting
policies, certain items are shown at fair value.

Qualifying entity exemptions
FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity c¢énain disclosurc cxemptions, subject to certain conditions, which have been complied
with, including notification of, and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the Company's shareholders.

Statement of cash flows

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available from preparing a statement of cash Mows, on the basis that it
is a qualifying entity and the consolidated statement of cash flows, included in these financial statements, includes the
Company’s cash flows.

Financial instruments disclosure

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available from the financial instruments disclosure, required under FRS
" 102 paragraphs 11.39 to 11.48A and paragraphs 12.26 to 12.29, as the information is provided in the consolidated financial
statements disclosures.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Staterients for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statcments consolidate the financial staicments of the Company, its joint ventures and its
subsidiary underiakings drawn up to 31 October 2018.

A subsidiary is an cntity controlled by the Company. Control is achicved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and opcrating policies of an catity so as to obtdin benefits from its activitics.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposced of during the ycar arc included in the Profit and Loss Account from the
cffective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statcments of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policics into linc with those used by the Group,

Inier-company transactions, balances and unrcaliscd gains on transaclions between the Company and its subs’idiuﬁcsl which
are included within amounts owed by and due to related partics, are eliminated in full,

Accounting policics of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary 10 ensure consistency with the policics adopted by
the Group. Non-controlling intcrests in the nct asscts of consolidated subsidiarics are identified scparately from the Group’s
cquity therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original busincss
combination and the non-controlling sharcholder’s share of changes in cquity since the date of the combination.

Investments in joint ventures arc accounted for using the equity method. The consolidated profit and loss account includes
the Group's share of profit/(loss) after tax based on the latest financial statements and management ‘accounts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, the investments are shown as the Group’s share of asscts and liabilitics.

Associates
In the Group financial statements, investments in associates arc accounted for using the equity method.

Investments in associates arc recognised initially in the consolidated balance sheet al the transaction price and subsequently
adjusted to reflect the Group's share of tolal comprehensive income and cquity of the associate, fess any impairment. Any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable asscts, liabilities and
contingent liabilitics of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition, although treated as goodwill, is presented as part
of the investment in the associate. Amortisation is charged $0 as 10 allocate the cost of goodwill over its estimated uscful life
using the straight-linc method.

Losses in excess of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate are recorded as a provision only when the Group
has incurred lcgal or constructive obligations or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Business combinations

Busincss combinations arc accounted for using the purchase method. The consideration for cach acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values at acquisition date of assets given, liabilitics incurred or assumed, and cquity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquired entity, plus any costs dircctly attributablé to the business
combination. When a business combination agreement provides for an adjustment to the cost of the combination contingent
on futurc events, the Group includes the estimated amount of that adjustment in the cost of the combination at the acquisition
date if the adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably.

Going concern

The Group's business activitics, togéther with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position
arc set out in the Strategic Report. The financial position of the Group is sct out in the Group balance sheet and the
accompanying notcs to the financial statements. The Group’s cash and borrowings positions arc sct out in the Strategic
Report and notes 20 and 26 to the financial statcments. A description of the Group's management of interest rale sk and
treasury risk are set out in the Strategic Report.

The Group has considerable financial resources and carrics no significant debt other than non-recourse borrowing in project
companics. The core construction operations of the Group arc charucterised by long-term contracts and the level of activily
in relation 10 these contracts is sccure into the forcseeable future. As a conscquence, the Directors believe that the Group will
be ablce to manage its business risks successfully.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a rcasonable cxpectation that the Company and the Group have adcquate

resources to continue in operational existence for the foresecable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and financial statcments.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policics the Dircctors make certain judgements and estimates that impact
the amounts recognised in the financial statements. Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
expericnce and other factors, including expectations of future events that arc believed to be rcasonable under the
circumstances.

The critical arcas of accounting judgement are:

The classification for investment properties: Investment properties are classificd as such where the Group identifies land and
buildings which it holds to generate capital appreciation and/or to carn rental income as investment property.

Accounting for propertics within Stocks: Other propertics are classificd as properties held for development and sale where
the Group identifics land and buildings which it holds with a view to developing and subsequent sale on the open market.
The Group states its development properties at cost less impairment.

Significant arcas of estimation unccrainty arc:

Tumover: The wmover policy, described below, requires forecasts to be made of the outcomes of long-term construction
contracts, which require assessments and estimates to be made on the recovery of pre-contract costs, changes in the scope of
work, contract programmes, defects liabilitics and changes in costs. There arc several long-term construction contracis where
the Group has incorporated significant estimates over contractual cntitlements. The range of potential outcomes could result
in a positive or ncgative change to underlying profitability and cash flow.

PPP scrvice concessions: Accounting for the service concession contracts and financial assels requires an cstimation of
service margins, which are based on forecasted revenues and costs of the PPP contracts.

Taxation: The Group is subject to tax and cstimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. The Group
provides for futurc liabilities in respect of uncertain tax positions where additional tax may become payable in future periods
and such provisions are based on management’s assessment of exposures. This may involve a significant amount of
estimates as tax legislation can be complex and open to different interpretation in particular in relation to the basis of
taxation on one-off or unusual transactions. Management uscs both in-house and cxternal tax experts and previous
experience when assessing tax risks. These judgements are prone to changes in future periods. Each potential liability or
contingency is revisited annually, and where actual expected tax liabilities differ from the provisions, adjustments are made
which can have a material impact on the Group’s profit for the year.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally provided for in full and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that futurc taxable profit will arisc against which the temporary differcnces will be utilised. Management estimates arc
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised based on the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits.

Valuation of investment propertics: The Group uses both internal and external professional valuers to determine the rclevant
amounts. The primary source of evidence for property valuations should be rccent, comparable market transactions on an
arms-length basis. However, the valuations of the Group's investment properties are inherently subjective, as they are made
on the basis of assumptions made by the valuers which may not prove to be accurate.

Debtors: A provision for debtors is established where it is estimated that the debtors are not considered to be fully
recoverable. When assessing recoverability, the directors consider factors such as the aging of the receivables, past
experience of recoverability, and the credit profile of individual or groups of customers. These estimates may depend upon
the outcome of future events and may need 10 be revised as circumstances change.

Provisions: Provisions (sec notc 22) arc made for expected future losses on incomplete contracts. These provisions require
management’s best estimate of the costs that will be required to complete contracts based on contractual requirements. It is
impracticable to estimate the timing of the utilisation of the future losses and discounting, unless material, has not been
applicd.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Retirement benefit obligations: The Group has defined bencfit pension scheme obligations (sce noic 23) to pay pension
bencfits to the schemes' members. The cost of these benefits and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of
factors, including: tifc expectancy, salary increascs; asset valuations and the discount ratc on corporate bonds. Management
estimates these factors in determining the net pension obligation dn the balance sheet. The assumptions reflcct historical
expericnce and current trends and take into account the advice of a qualificd actuary.

Exceptional items

Section 5 of FRS 102 deals with the presentation of total comprehensive income for the reporting period. FRS 102 requires
matcrial items (0 be discloscd scparatcly on the face of the profit and loss account in a way that enables users to assess the
quality of a company's financial performance. In practice, these are commonly referred to as *"cxceptional” items, but this is
not a concept defined by FRS 102 and therefore there is a level of judgement involved in detcrmining what 10 include as
‘Exceptional’. We consider items which arc non-recurring or significant in size or in naturc to be suitable for scparate
presenlation (see notc 6).

Turnover
Tumover represents the valuc of work carried out, gross property income and services supplied to clients during the year.

Construction’ tumover is recogniscd by reference to the stage of complction at the reporting datc when the outcome of
individual contracts can be cstimated reliably. Construction tumover.is recognised on the basis of the proportion of total
costs at the reporting daie to the estimated total costs of the contract. Estimates of the final out-turn on cach contract may
include cost contingencics to take accoumt of the specific risks within cach contract that have been identificd. The cost
contingencics are reviewed on a reguldr basis throughout the contract life and are adjusted where appropriate. The Dircctors
continually review the estimated final out-tum on contracts, and in certain limited cases, asscss recoveries from insurers, and
make adjustments where nccessary. No margin is recogniscd until the outcome of the contract can be estimated with
reasonable certainty. Construction tumover includes variations in contract work which arc recognised when it is probable
that it will be agreed by the client and the amount can be measured reliably. Construction turnover also includes claims
which arc rccognised when negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that it is probable that the client will accept the
claim and thc amount can be measured reliably, Profit is recogniscd on long-term contracts only once the final outcome can
be assessed with reasonable ceriainty by including turnover and cost of sales within the profit and loss account as contract
progresscs.

PPP twmover includes interest income which is allocated, from the (otal projected unitary charge, to the financial assct using
the cffective interest rate method. The residual element of projected unitary charge is recognised as a margin on operating
costs by means of a decmed rate of return on thosc costs and is also included in turnover.

Property tumover comprises rental income and service charge income. Rental income from investment property under an
operating lcasc is rcc.ogmscd within turnover on a straighi-line basis over the leasc term. Scrvice charge income is
recogniscd within turnover in the period 10 which it relates.

Cost of sales
These comprise the direct costs of the work carricd out during the year and include any provisions for expected future losscs
and contingencics on contracls.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions of United Kingdom bascd companics denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monctary asscts and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies at the ba\ancc sheet
date are transated at the rates ruling at that date. The exchange movements arce dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The financial statements of forcign subsidiarics are translated into sterling at the closing rates of exchange. The differences

arising from the translation of the opening nct investment in subsidiarics at the closing rate and matched long-term foreign
currency borrowings arc taken dircctly to reserves.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Tax

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts cxpected to be paid (or recovered) using
the tax rates and Jaws that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the balance sheet date.

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered probable that
there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimaic of the amount
cxpected to become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Conipany supported
by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differcnces that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events that result in an obligation 1o pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future
have occurred at the balance shect date. Timing differcnces arc differences betwecen the Group's taxable profits and its
results as stated in the financial statcments that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods
different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

Unrelicved tax losses and other deferred tax asscts are recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available
cvidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the futurc reversal
of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognised for timing differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is ablc to control the reversal of the timing difference and it is probable that it will not reverse in the
foresccable future.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been cnacted or substantively cnacted by the balance sheet
date that arc cxpected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax relating to non-depreciable property
measured using the revaluation mode! and investment property is measured using the tax ratcs and allowances that apply to
sale of the assct. In other cases, the measurement of deferred 1ax liabilitics and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manncr in which the Group expects, at the end of the reponting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its asscts and liabilitics.

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity are chargeable to or deductible for tax purposes, the
resulting current or deferred tax expense or income is presented in the same component of comprehensive income or equity
as the transaction or other event that resulted in the tax expense or income.

Current tax asscts and liabilitics are offset only when there is a legally enforccable right to set off the amounts and the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realisc the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsct only if: a) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax asscts
against current tax liabilities; and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on cither the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilitics and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilitics simultanecusly, in cach future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expecied to be settled or recovered.

Intangible assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity rcpresents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in
the nct fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recogniscd at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and subscquently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losscs.

Goodwill amortisation

Goodwill is amortised over its useful life. Where the Group is unable to make a reliable estimate of useful life, goodwill is
amortised over a period not exceeding twenty years. Goodwill is assessed for impairment when therc are indicators of
impairment and any impairment is charged (o the profit and loss account. Reversals of impairment are recognised when the
reasons for the impairment no longer apply.

Tangible asscts
Tangible assets are stated at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of tangible assets includes directly attributable costs incurred during acquisition and installation, other than interest,
which is written off to the profit and loss account.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Depreciation

Deprceciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than {und and propertics under construction, over their
estimiated usclul lives, as follows:

Assct class Depreciation method and rate

N 1 M -~ ves n ly)

Frochold land and buildings slrgl_ghl linc on cost between 3.33% and 10%
per annum.

straight linc on cost or reducing balance

between 5% and 60% per annum.

reducing batance between 5% and 60% per

annum. .

Furniture, fittings and equipment

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Investment propertics are carried at their fair valucs based upon the current market prices for comparable real cstate and are
determined annually, Valuations consider available market prices, adjusted if necessary for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair valuc are recognisced in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments in cquity sharcs which are publicly iraded or where the fair value can be meuasured reliably arc initially
measured at fair value, with subscquent changes in fuir value recogaised in profit or loss. Invesiments in equity sharcs which
arc not publicly traded and where fair valuc cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment,

Interest income on dcebt Securitics, where applicable, is recogniscd in income using ‘the effective interest method. Dividends
on cquily securitics are recognised in income when receivable.

Stocks

Raw materials and consumables are stated at the lower of cost and cstimated sclling price Jess costs to complete and sell.
Cost is dctermined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective
items where appropriate..

The cost of work in progress comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and thosc overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the work to its present location and condition. At each reporting date, stocks are assessed for
impairment. If stocks arc impaired, the carrying amount is reduccd to its selling price less costs to complete and sell and the
impairment loss is rccogniscd immediatcly in profit or loss.

Long-term contract balances represent costs incurred net of amounts transferred to cost of sales less any foresccable losscs.

Properties held for development and sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The costs consist of
construction costs and other costs specifically rclated to the development other than interest, which is written off in profit or
loss.

Trade debtors

Tradc debiors are amounts due from customers for services perfornied in the ordinary course of business.

Trade debtors arc recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subscquemly measured at amortised cost using the
cffective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of trade debtors is ¢stablished when
there is objéctive cvidence that the Group will not be able to collect alt amounts duc according 10 the original terms of the
reccivables. '

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand compriscs cash in hand, call deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that arc
rcadily convertible 1o a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade creditors

Trade creditors arc obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business.
Accounts payable arc classified as current liabilitics if the Group docs not have an unconditional right, at thc cnd of the
reporting period, to defer scttlement of the creditor for at least twelve months afier the reponing date. If there is an
unconditional right to defer setticment for at lcast twelve months after the reporting date, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Trade creditors are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
cffective interest method.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings arc initially recorded at fair value, nct of transaction costs. Interesi-bearing borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortiscd cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the amount
duc on redemption being recognised as a charge to the profit and loss account over the period of the relevant borrowing,

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the cffective interest method and is included in interest payable and similar
charges.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer sctticment of the liability
for at lcast twelve months after the reporting date.

Provisions

Provisions arc recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation at the reporting date as a result of
past cvents, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
madec of the amount of the obligation.

.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recogniscd cven if the likclihood of an outflow with respect
10 any one itcm in the same class of obligations is small.

When the effect of the time value of moncy is material, the amount of a provision is the present valuc of the amount
expected 10 be required to settle the obligation. The discount rate uses a pre-1ax rate that reflects current market asscssments
of the time value of money and risks specific to the liability. The risks specific to the liability are reflected either in the
discount rate or in the estimation of the amounts required to scitle the obligation, but not both.

Leases
Lcases are classified as finance lcases whencver the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessce.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the lower of their fair value at inception of the lease and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. These assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful life of the
assct and the lease term. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance shect as a finance lease
obligation.

Leasc payments are apportioned between finance costs in the profit and loss account and reduction of the leasc obligation so
as to achieve a constant periodic rate of intercst on the remaining balance of the liability.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other resources
received or reccivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments.

Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company’s sharcholders are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the reporting
period in which the dividends are declared.

Defined contributien pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which contributions are paid into a pension fund and the Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to pay (urther contributions even if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
members the benefits relating to employce service in the current and prior periods.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as employce bencfit expenses when they are due. If contribution
payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recognised as a prepayment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Defined bencefit pension obligation

The Group operatés two defined benefit pension schemes whercby a member will receive a pension benefit on relirement,
usualy dependent on onc or more fuctors such as years of service and remuncration.

The iiubili(y recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined bencfit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan asscts. The defined benefit obligation is measurcd using the
projected unit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
payments by reference to market yiclds on high-quality corporate bonds at the reporting date that are denominated in the
currency in which the beacfits will be paid, and that have tcrms (0 maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
lability.

Actuariil gains and losses are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Financinl instruments
Classification .
The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

Recognition and measurement

Basic financial assels, including trade and other reccivables, cash and bank balances and investments in short-term deposits,
arc initially recogniscd at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaiction, where the transaction
is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Such asscls arc subscquently
carried at amontiscd costs using the effective interest method.

Other financial asscls, including investments in ¢quity instruments which are nol subsidiarics, associates or joint ventures,
arce. initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price.

Such asscts are subscquently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value arc recogniscd in profit or loss, cxcept that
investments in cquily instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot be measured reliably are
measured at cost less impairment.

Financial asscts arc de-recognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expirc or are scttled, or (b)
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the assel are transferred to another party or (¢) despite having
retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership, control of the assct has been transferred to another party who has
the practical ability 10 unilatcrally scll the asset 1o an unrclated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

Basic financial liabilitics, including tradc and other payables, Scnior loans and loans from fellow group companics, arc
initially recogniscd at wransaction price, unless the arrangement constituics a financing transaction, where the debt instrument
is measured at the present valuc of future reccipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of Senior loan facilitics arc récognised at transaction costs of the loan 1o the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will bc drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no cvidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fec is capitalised as a
prc-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. -

Trade payables arc obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of busincss from
suppliers. Accounts payable arc classificd as curreat liabilitics if payment is duc within onc year othérwise they are
presented as non-current liabilitics. Trade payables are recognised initially at transaction price and subscquently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities arc de-recognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is discharged,
cancclled or cxpires.
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Impainnent

At the end of cach reporting period, financial assets measured at amortised cost arc assessed for objective evidence of
impairment. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present valuc
of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original cffective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

If there is a decreasc in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring afier the impairment was recognised, the
impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount
would have been had the impairment not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives

Derivatives, including interest raic swaps, inflation swaps and forward foreign cxchange contracts, are not basic financial
instruments.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and arc subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in profit or foss within finance costs or
finance income as appropriate, unlcss they are included in a hedging arrangement.

Hedging

The Group applics hedge accounting {or transactions entered into in order to manage the cash flow exposurcs of borrowings.
Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate cxposures and arc designed as cash flow hedges of floating rate
borrowings.

Changes in fair values of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, and which are effective, are rccogniscd dircctly in
equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedging relationship (being the excess of the cumulative change in fair value of the
hedging instrument since inception of the hedge over the cumulative change in the fair valuc of the hedged item since
inception of the hedge) is recognised in profit or loss.

The gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge relationship ends.
Hedge accounting is discounted when the hedging instrument expires, no longer mects the hedging criteria, the forecast
transaction is no longer highly probable, the hedged debt instrument is de-recognised or the hedging instrument is
terminated.
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3 . Turnover

The analysis of the Group's tuenover {or the year from continuing operations is as follows:

. Contracting
PPP concessions
Property

The analysis of the Group's turover for thc ycar by geographic markcl is as follows:

United Kingdom
Caribbcan

4 Other operating (losses)/ gains

The analysis.of the group's other operiiting (losses)/giins for the year is as follows:

Gainon di.gpos':ii of property, plant and cquipment
Gain on revaluations of -investment propertics
Loss on disposal of invesiment properties

Gain on disposal of investments

¢

5 Operating profit/(loss)
Artived at afier charging/(crediting)

Amortisation expensc (sec note 13)

Depreciation expensc (sce note 14)

Impairment reversal (sce note 17)

Operating leasc-expense - property

Opcrating lcase expense - plant and machinery
Profit on disposal of property, plant and cquipment
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2018 2017
£000 £000
814,463 897,704
49,950 39,868
6,090 4,927
870,503 942,499
2018 2017
£000 £000
824,730 895,462
45773 47,037
870,503 942,499
2018 2017
£000 £000
369 542
- 4,666
(884) -
10 8
(505) 5216
2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
985 984
8,731 7,234
(887) (469)
4,153 4,550
6,325 7,523
(369) (542)
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6 Exccptional items

The results for the year include the following which are considered to be Exceptional items based on their size or non-
recurring naturc.

* Included within Adrinistrative Expenses are costs incurred as a result of the following:
« An operational redesign of the construction busincss incurred costs of £3.8m.

« On 30th November 2017, the dccision was made to close the Sir Robert McAlpine Limited Staff Pension and Life
Assurance Scheme to future accrual, incurring one off costs of £9.9m (after 10% deduction relating 10 the allocation to RES).

* We have worked with our actuarial advisers to understand the implications of the l.loyds GMP judgement for the schemes
in which the group participates and a cost of £1.6m reflects our best estimate of the cffect on our reported pension liabilities.

Included within Intcrest Payable and similar charges are costs of £5.05m incurred when a PPP subsidiary of the Group repaid
the entirety of its senior debt.

Following a stratcgic revicw in the prior year it was determined that the Group would no longer participate in the
construction of "Energy from Waste" facilities, where there was contractual responsibility taken for process risk. The Group
considered this to be a business stream exit. Conscquently, all revenues and directly associated costs are presented as
exceptional items to cnable the users of the financial statcments to get a better understanding of the results of the Group. The
exited businesses do not meet the definition of discontinued operations as stipulated by FRS 102 because neither the business
nor any assets related to it have been disposed of. Accordingly, the disclosures within exceptional items differ from those
applicable for discontinued operations.

7 Interest receivable and similar income

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Interest income on investments 1,210 1,206
Bank interest receivable and similar income 851 2,783
Net gain on derivative - 861
Foreign exchange gains 765 1,166
2,826 6,016

8 Interest payaﬁlc and similar charges

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings 14,559 12,368
Interest on obligations under finance leascs and hire purchase contracts 499 338
Foreign exchange losses 193 5717
Net ioss on derivative 380 -
Net interest cxpense on employee benefit liabilities 3,181 3,962
18,812 17,245
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9 Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs (including Dircclors’ remuncration) were as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £000
‘Wages and salarics 138,322 132,057
Social sccurity costs’ 14,385 14,574
Pcn_sjon costs, dcf}ncd contribution scheme L 5,698 4435
Pension costs, defined benefit scheme . ..279 3.684
158,684 154,750
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, was as follows:
2018 2017
i N . No. No.
Average number cmployed in construction services during the year 2,182 2,209
The average number of émployees of the Company during the year was 25 (2017 6).
10 Directors' remuncration
The Directors' remuncration for the year was aé follows:
2018 2017
. £000 £ 000
Remuncration ] 4,574 2,410
Key management personne! compensation in both the current and prior year consists only of Dircctors’ remuncration,
:I)uri’ng the year the number of Dircctors who were recciving benefits wis as follows:
' 2018 2017
No. No.
Accruing benefits under defined bencfit pension scheme ) 2 2
Nodircetors (2017 - nonc) were members of defined contribution schemes..
In respect of the highest paid director:
2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Remuncration ) 800 554
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11 Auditor's remuncration

2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Audit of Parcnt Company 35 30
Audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries of thc Company pursuant to
legislation 329 280
364 310
Other fecs to auditor
Fees in respect of the audit of the associated pension schemes 23 23
12 Taxation
Tax credited in the profit and loss account
2018 2017
£000 £000
Current taxation
United Kingdom corporation tax 161 145
United Kingdom corporation tax adjustment to prior periods ) (163) 23)
) 376
Foreign tax 32 -
Total current tax 30 376
Defcrred taxation
Arising from origination and reversal of timing diffcrences (947) (1,043)
Total tax credited ©17) (667)

The differences between the total tax credit shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard (blended) rate
of United Kingdom corporation tax of 19.00% (2017 - 19.41%) to the profit/(loss) before tax arc as follows:

2018 2017
. £000 . £000
Profit/(loss) before tax 660 (20,220)
Corporation tax at standard rate 125 (3.925)
Income not taxable in determining taxable profit 4,423) 4,375)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,806 707
Group relicf received for nil consideration @7 -
Remeasurement of deferred tax assets and liabilitics due to changes in United
Kingdom tax ratc 751 276
Change in unrecognised deferred tax asscts 37 6,894
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised 3) (475)
Adjustments 1o tax charge in respect of previous periods (163) 231
Total tax credit 917 (667)
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Deferred tax

Group
Defcrred tax assets and liabilitics (sce notes 19 and 22)
- Asset - Liability
2018 £000 £000
Dcprccmuon in excess of capitat ullowmccs 34 -
Short term timiing differences 220 8,107
Losscs : 12,610 -
Revaluation of investment propeny - 753
Retirement benefit obligations . 21,208 -
34,072 8,860
Asset Liability
2017 ) £000 £000
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 33 -
Short term timing differences 820 8,920
Losscs c 12,931
Revaluation of investment property - -
Retiremeny benefit obligations .. 19,845 . -
33,629 8,920

It is expected that £2,918,000 (2017 - £3,501,000) of the deferred tax assets and £650 000 (2017 - £650,000) of the deferred
tax liabilitics will' reverse during the next year.

Therc are no unrccognised deferred tax liabilities (2017 - £Nil).

There arc £33,094,000 (2017 - £33,726,000) of unrecogniscd deferred tax assets. Thesc arc analysed as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Accélerated capital allowances 4,799 3,930
Losses ) 27,097 27,682
Short term timing differcnces 1,198 2,114
13 094 33,726

Company
Deferred tax assets (sce note 19)

Deferred tax asscts of £20,274,000 have been recognised in respect of retirement bencefit obligations (2017 - £18,894,000 in
respect of retirement benefit obligations).

There arc £1,524,000 (2017 - £1,932,000) of unrccognised deferred tax asscts. These are analysed as follows:

2018 2017

o £000 £000
Accelcrated capital allowances 12 12
Short term timing, differences 474 768
Losses 1,038 1,152
1,524 1932
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The United Kingdom Corporation Tax fell from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. The Finance Act 2016 proposed
a further reduction to the corporation tax main rate to 17% with effect from 1 April 2020. The Finance Act 2016 was cnacted
on 15 September 2016.

13 Intangible asscts

Group

Goodwill

£000

Cost
At 1 November 2017 19,585
At 31 October 2018 . 19,585
Amortisation
At 1 November 2017 13,856
Amortisation charge - ) 985
At31 October 2018 14,841
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2018 4,744
At 31 October 2017 5,729

Goodwill is amortised over the expected uscful lives of the assets purchased, which are estimated to range between 10 and
20 ycars.

No research and development costs were capitalised during the year (2017 - £Nil). The aggregate amount of rescarch and
devclopment expenditure, in the field of civil engincering and construction, recognised as an expense during the year was
£9.5m (2017 - £9.8m).

Company
The company had no intangible asscts at 31 October 2018 (2017 - £Nil).

No research and development costs were capitalised dunng the year (2017 - £Nil) and no research and development costs
were cxpensed during the year (2017 - £Nil).
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14 Tangible assets

Group
Frechold lund and  Furniture, fittings Property, plant and
buildings and cquipment cquipment Total
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000

Cost
At 1 November 2017 25,720 ' 18,299 46,640 90,659
Additions - 1,119 : 14,658 15,7717
Disposals (135) (883) (3,550) (4,568)
Foreign exchange movements 97 ) - . 218 315
At 31 October 2018 25,682 18,535 57,966 102,183
Dcepreciation
At | November 2017 11,331 14,227 29,135 54,693
Charge for the year 668 1,600 6,463 8,731
Eliminated on disposal (90) (823) (3,139) (4,052)
Forcign exchange -movements _ 19 , - 154 173
At 31 October 2018 ) _ 11,928 . __ 15,004 32,613 59,545
Carrying amount -
At 31 October 2018 - 13,754 3,531 25,353 42,638
AL 31 October 2017 14,389 4,072 17,505 35,966

All land and buildings held by the Group in both the current year and pror year arc frechold.

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

The net carrying amount of tangible assets includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance leases and
hire purchasc contracts:

2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Property, plant and cquipment 6.325 7.573
1
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15 Investment propertics

Group
£000

At | November 2017 20,366
Additions 3,797
Disposals (3,350)
Transfcrs from inventorics - 142
Fair valuc adjustments 1,564
AU31 Oclober 2018 ' 22,519

All investment propertics are frechold. The comparable historical ‘cost of the investment propertics is £13.456m (2017 -
£14.207m) and the comparable historical depreciation of the investment propertics is £1.494m (2017 - £1.407m).

The wholly-owned investment properties, which are situated in the United Kingdom and the United States of America, were
revalued by the Dircctors based upon internal recommendations made by qualified Charteréd Surveyors and based on market
values in both the current year and prior ycar.

In respect of £18.750m (2017 - £13.389m) of frechold investment propcrtics there is in cexistence a fixed and floating charge
and the remittance of rental income on these investment propertics has becn pledged as sccurity.

16 Investments

Group
2017 2017
£000 £000
Investments in joint ventures (scc notc 16a) 50,073 44,140
Investments in associates (see note 16b) 122 220
50,195 44,360

Page 35



Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

16a Investments in joint ventures

The citrrying vilue of the Group's investments in joint ventures was as follows:

v » Equity Loans Total
Cost and carrying amount £000 £000 £000
AL 1 November 2017 27378 16,762 44,140
Profit for the yeaf. 9,589 - 9,589
Dividends paid (5,049) - (5,049)
Additions 579 - 579
Disposals ') s (0]
Increasc in loans - 1,929 1,929
Repayments - {1,484) (1,484)
Exchange rate adjustments - 390 (20) 370
At 31 October 2018 32,886 17,187, 50,073

Sce note 32 for a list of joint ventures of the Group.

16b Investments in associates

The carrying viluc of the Group's investments in associates was as follows:

Equity Loans Total
Cost and carrying amount £000 £ 000 £000
At t November 2017 220 - 220
Lst for the year (85) - (85)
Dividends 13) - (§K))
At 31 October 2018

122 - 122

Sec note 32 for a list of associates of the Group.

Page 36



Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Company
The carrying value of the Company's investments in subsidiarics was as follows:

£000
Cost
At | November 2017 and 31 October 2018 135,008
Provision
At 1 November 2017 ) 2,128
Provision 353
At 31 October 2018 2,481
Carrying amount '
At 31 October 2018 132,527
At 31 October 2017 132,880
Sce note 32 for a list of subsidiary undcrtakings of the Company. .
17 Other financial asscts
Group Unlisted sccurities Loans Total
Cost £000 £000 £000
At November 2017 & 31 October 2018 12,403 16,102 28,505
Provisions
2

At 1 November 2017 979 (88) 291
Impairment provisions (released)/made in the ycar (979) 92 (887)
At 31 October 2018

- 4 4
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2018 ]2'403 16,098 28,50’
At 31 October 2017 11424 16.190 27614

Unlisted sccuritics are held at cost less impairment as their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

. - . P f - T

Loans are held at fair valuc where their fair value can be measured reliably. Where fair values cannot be measured reliably,
loans are held at cost less impairment.
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18 Stocks

Raw materials and consimables
WIP and long-tcrm contract balances
Propertics held for development and salc

19 Decbtors

Duec in less than one year:

Tradc debtors

Finiancial asscts

Amounts owed by related partics
Other debtors

Prepayments

Gross amount duc from customers
for contract work

Deflerred tax asscts (sce note 12)
Corporation tax asscl

Duc in more than onc year:
Financial assets
Other debtors

Gross amount duc from customers
for contract work

Deferred tax asscts (sec notc 12)

Group
2018 2017
£000 £000
498 525
875 676
56,025 58,071
57,398 59,272
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
16,700 8,935 s
5018 12,520 - -
- - 32,047 127,441
18253 30,592 - 242
14,308 13925 354 406
126,576 138,792 - -
2918 3,501 1,368 1518
1,480 1362, - et
185,253 199,627 33,769 129,607
Group ’ Company _
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000
121,576 125,176 - -
4427 5,364 - .
22,170 21,515 - -
31,154 30.128 18,906 17,376
179,327 182,183 18,906 17,376

Amounts owed by related partics, which include subsidiarics and associatéd viidertakings are unsecured, interest free, have
no fixed datc of repayment and arc repayable on demand, except for those items disclosed in note 30.
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20 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank
Short-term deposits

Group

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
138,991 122,387 2,177 10,338
23,188 83,506 - -
162,179 205,893 2,177 10,338

Short-term deposits held by the Group have an original maturity of 12 months or less. At the balance sheet date the average
maturity of deposits was 3 months (2017 - 8 months). The average interest ratc was 0.95% (2017 - 0.49%). They are

measurcd al amontised cost.

Within the Group figurcs for shori:term deposits is £17,992,000 (2017 - £73,850,000) and within cash at bank is
£18,783,000 (2017 - £19,308,000) held under terms which arc currently restrictive. Thesce are held primarily by PPP Special
Purpose Vchicles in both the current and prior years.

Company

The Company had no short-term deposits (2017 - £nil) and the Company had no cash at bank held under terms which arc

currently restrictive (2017 - £nil).

21 Crcditors

Duac within one year

Loans and borrowings (scc notc 26)
Trade creditors

Amounts duc to related partics
Social sccurity and other taxcs
Other payables

Accrucd expenses

Deferred income

Due after one year

Loans and borrowings (sec note 26)
Trade creditors

Other payables

Deferred income

. e G i e - e - e

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 ’ 2017

£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000
8,629 10,306 - -
202,670 223,781 - -
- - 46,062 132,664
5,779 5,407 38 12
4,926 7,395 - i
33,943 31,507 251 141
55,945 45,384 - -
311,892 323,780 46,351 132,818
139,914 174,221 - -
14,752 13,021 - -
16,012 18,643 - -
35,502 36,179 - -
206,180 242,064 - -

Amounts due to related partics, which include subsidiaries and associated undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no
fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand, except for those items disclosed in note 29.
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22 Provisions for labilitics -

Group
Deferred tax Other provisions Total
£000 £000 - £000
At | November 2017 8,920 19,627 28,547
Additional provisions . 5,000 5,000
Provisions utiliscd . D) > (19565) . . (19,625)
AL 31 Ociober 2018 . 8860 . 5062 . 13922

Sce note 12 for a breakdown of the deferred tax liabilities,

Other provisions include provisions for insurance and legal-claims all of which are incurred in the normal course of:business.
It -is impracticable to estimaic the timing of the utilisation of futurc losses., All amounts: includcd- within provisions have not
been:discounted.

Company
Other provisions
£000
At | November 2017 o 62
At 31 October 2018 : 62

Other provisions relate to compensalion arrangcments.

It is impracticable to estimate the timing of the compensation arrangements. Al amounts included within provisions have not
been discounted.
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23 Pension and other schemes

Defincd contribution pension schemes

Group

A subsidiary of the Group operates two defined contribution pension schemes where cmployee contributions are matched by
company contributions. The pension cost charge for the yeéar represents contributions payable by the Group to the scheme
and amounted to £5,436,000 (2017 - £4,435,000). All costs were expensed as incurred and there were no amounts
outstanding, by way of eithcr amounts owing or commitments, at the year end (2017 - £Nil).

Defined benefit pension and other schemes -

Group and Company

Newarthill Limited operates two defined benefit schemes - a staff scheme (The Sir Robert McAlpinc Limited Staff Pension
and Life Assurance Scheme) and a senior executive scheme. The stafl scheme has been closed to new members since 2002,
On 30 November 2017, this scheme ceased accruing future benefits and all active members were transferred to the defined
contribution scheme and became deferred members incurring onc off costs of £9.9m after the 10% deduction allocated to

RES.

Group

In addition, a subsidiary of the Group opcraies a post-retirement medical scheme for a number of former employecs.

Post-retirement

Group Staff scheme Exccutive scheme  medical scheme Total

2018 £000 £000 £000 £ 000
Toual liability 123,708 6,726 5,424 135,858
Allocated outside of the Group (12,372) - - (12,372)
111,336 6,726 5,424 123,486

Post-retirement

Staff scheme Exccutive scheme  medical scheme Total

2017 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Total liability 117,122 3,688 5,583 126,393
Allocated outside of the Group (11,712 - - (11,712)
105,410 3,688 5,583 114,681

Company Staff scheme Executive scheme Total

2018 £ 000 £000 £000
Total liability 123,708 6,726 130,434
Allocated outside of the Group (12,372) - (12,372)
111,336 6,726 118,062

Staff scheme Executive scheme Total

2017 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Total liability 117,122 3,688 120,810
Allocated outside of the Group (11,712 - {11,712)
105,410 3,688 109,098
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The Sir Rebert McAlpine Limited Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme

Benefits are based upon pensionable pay. Until 31 December 2012, pensionable pay increased annually although this was
capped dependent on a varicty of factors. Any difference between aélual salary and pensionable pay was paid into a defined
contribution fund. From 1 January 2013, the pensionable pay was frozen and contributions bascd on this frozen clement -
with the difference continuing to be paid into the defined contribution fund. Depending on the level of contribution being
madc by thc member, their final pension is bascd cither on this frozen pensionable pay figure or will increase over time -
dependent on a varicty of factors. Employce contributions were matched by the cmployer. The assets of the scheme are held
scparatcly from those of the Group. The pension costs arc assessed in accordance with the advice of an cxternal, qualified
actuary using the projected unit method. Total contributions (employer and employee) made during the year were
£8,261,000 (2017 - £11,710,000). Included within the contributions is an additional payment of £8,000,000 made by the
employer as agreed in the Recovery Plan following the 2015 valuation (2017 - £8,000,000 additional payment by the
cmployer).,

The daic of thc most recent comprehensive actuarial valuation was 31 October 2015. The pension cost relating (o the scheme
is asscsscd in accordance with the advice of an cxternal, qualified actuary using the projected unit method. The assumptions
which have a significant effect on the resulis of the valvation are thosc relating to the ratc of retum on the investments and
the rates of increascs in salaries and pensions. The post-retirement rate of return uscs the gilt yield curve +1.0% and the pre-
retircment rate of retumn uses the gilt yicld curve +2.25%. Salary increases arc assumed to be 2.0% per annum and pension
increases range between 2.5% and 5.0% depending on when the benefit was accrued. At the date of the latest actuarial
valuation, the valuation showced a nct deficit of £107.6m, with the market value of the scheme’s jnvcs(m_cnls amounting to
£372.0m which was sufficicat to cover 78% of the benefits that had accrucd to members. The scheme has been closed to new
cntrants and under the projected unit method the current service cost will increase as the members approach retirement.
Following cessation, this is no longer the case and accrued service costs are no longer applicable.

The total cost (before deduction of costs allocated outside of the Group) retating 1o the defined henefit scheme for the year
recognised in profit or loss as an cxpensc, including exceptional items, was £17,588,000 (2017 - £8,243,000).

The total cost retating to the defined benefit scheme for the year included in the cost of an asset was £Nif (2017 - £Nil).

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilitics to assets and liabilitics recogniscd

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obligations in respect of its staff defined benefit scheme
is as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Fair value of scheme asscls R 429,360 444,616
Present value of defined benefit obligation (553,068) (561,738)
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet (123,708) (117,122)

The abovc figures show the total scheme liability and do not deduct any amounts allocated outside of the Group.
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Defined bencfit obligation

Changes in the dcfined benefit obligation are as follows:

Present valuc at 1 November 2017
Curreat service cost

Past service cost — curtailment costs
GMP Egqualisation costs

Interest cost

Actuarial gains and losses

Bencfits paid

Contributions by scheme participants

Present valuc at 31 October 2018

Fair valuc of scheme assets

Changes in the fair valuc of schemc asscts arc as follows:

Fair valuc at | November 2017

Interest income

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income/{(expensc)
Employcr contributions

Contributions by scheme participants

Assets distributed on settlements

Fair valuc at 3! October 2018

Analysis of assets

The major catcgories of scheme asscts arc as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity instruments
- Debt instruments

Return on scheme assets

Returmn on scheme assets

2018
£000

£ 000
" 561,738
1,592
11,009
1,725
15,572
(15,187
(23,665)
284

' 553,068

£000
444,616
12,310
(12,469)
8,284
284

(23,665)
429,360

134,390
181,619
113,351

2017
£000

112,684
264,411
67,521

429,360

444,616

2018
£000

(12,469)

2017
£000

7,194

The pension scheme has not invested in any of the Group's own financial instruments or in propenties or other assets used by

the Group except for the two investments described below.
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The enlity's own financial instruments included in the fair value of scheme asscts are as follows:

28% of the ordinary shares in Paget Health Servicés (Holdings) Limited arc held by the pension scheme and the fair value of
its investment at 31 October 2018 was £13,229,000 (2017 - £12,607,000). 2.125%- of the ordinary shares in Autolink
Holdings (M6) Limited arc held by the pension scheme and the fair value of its investiment at 31 October 2018 was £606,000
(2017 - £851,000).

N

Principal actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are ‘as follows:

2018 2017
% %
Discount ratc 2.90 2.80
Retail Price Index (RP1) inflation 3.20 3.10
Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation 2.10 2.00
Rate of increasc in salaries - 2.50 2.50
Raie of increasc in pension payments 2.50 - 3.50 2.50 - 3.40
Post retirement mortality assumptions
2018 2017
Ycars Ycars
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - male 22.10 22.20
Currcnt UK pensioners at retirement age - female 23.40 23.60
Future UK pensioncrs at retirement ige - male 24.10 24.20
Future UK pensioniers at retirement age - female 25.60 25.60

Plans that share risks between cntitics under common contro!

Newarthill Group shares the risks of the Scheme with Renewable Energy Systems Holdings Limited - an entity formerly
held within the Newarthill Group but now separate although under common control.

The Scheme's deficit is shared between the Newarthilt Group and the Renewable Encrgy Systems Holdings Limited Group.
Newarthill Group recognises 90% of the costs and liabilitics of thc Schemé and Rencwable Encrgy Systems Holdings
Limited Group recognises 10%. The figures shown in this note represent the total scheme liability although movements and
balances within the financial statements only recognisc the 90% allocated to the Newarthill Group.

Contributions were based on a percentage of a member's pensionable salary which were matched by the employer.
Additional contributions of £8.0m (2017 - £8.0m) have been made by the cmployer. Additional employer paymcnts will
continuc in 2019 in linc with the Recovery Plan and these will be shared in the same percentage ratio as noted above.

Exccutive Pension Scheme

The Group operates a scparate defined benefit scheme for senior exccutives. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from thosc of the Company. The pension cost relating 1o the scheme is assessed in accordance with the advice of an extcrnal,
qualified actuary using the projected unit method. Actual contributions made were £671,000 (2017 - £672,000),

The datc of the most recent comprehensive actuarial valuation was 31 December 2015. The assumptions which have a
significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the ratc of return on the investments and the rates of
increascs in salarics and pensions. The post-retirement rate of return uscs the Bank of England stripped gilts nominal spot
yield curve +0.5% and the pre-retirement rate of return uses the same yicld curve +1.2%. Salary increases are assumed to be
in linc with inflation and pension increases range between 2.5% and 5.0%. Al the date of the latest actuarial valuation, the
valuation showed a net deficit of £3.7m.
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The total cost relating to defined benefit schemes for the year recognised in profit or loss as an expense was £574,000 (2017
- £742,000).

The total cost relating to defined benefit schemes for the year included in the cost of an asset was £Nil (2017 - £Nil).

Reconciliation of scheme asscts and liabilities to assets and liabilities recognised

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obligations in respect of its cxecutive defined benefit
scheme is as follows:

2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Fair valuc of scheme asscis 29,203 31,348
Present valuc of defined benefit obligation (35,929) (35,036)
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet ) (6,726) (3,688)
Decfined benefit obligation
Changes in the defined benefit obligation arc as follows:
£000
Present valuc at 1 November 2017 35,036
Current service cost 480
Interest cost 981
Actuarial gains and losscs (590)
Benefits paid, net of insurance annuity income 22
Present value at 31 October 2018 35,929
Fair valuc of scheme assets
Changes in the fair valuc of scheme assets are as follows:
. £000
Fair value at 1 November 2017 : 31,348
[nterest income . 887
Actuarial gains and losscs (507)
Employcr contributions ] . . . ) ) 671
Benefits paid nct of insurance annuity income 22
Remeasurement losses on insured asscts (3,218)
Fair value at 31 October 2018 29,203
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Analysis of asscts

The major categorics of scheme asscets arc as follows:

2018 2017

£000 ©  £000
Cash and cash cquivalcats : 29 .
Equity instruments 11,798 11,975
Insured annuity 14,426 17.179
With profit funds , 2,950 2494

29203 31,348
Return on scheme asiets

2018 2017

£ 000 ‘ £ 000
Return on scheme asscls (507) 156

The pension scheme has not invested in any of the Group’s own financial instruments or in propertics or other assets uscd by
the Group.

Principal actuarial assumptions

The principal acarial assumptions are the same as the Staff Scheme, except for the following:

2018 2017
% %
Future sdlary increases 3.60 3.50
Future pension increases (max) : 3.20 ) 3.10
Post retirement mortality assumptions ]
2018 2017
Years Years
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - male 22.10 22.20
Current UK pensioncrs at retirement age - female 23.40 23.60
Futurc UK pensioners at retirement age - male 24.10 24.20
Future UK pensioners at retifement age - female 25.60 25.60
.
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Post-retirement medical scheme

The Group provides unfunded post-retirement medical bencefits for a number of its employces after rctirement.

Rcconciliation of scheme Jiabilitics to liabilitics recogniscd

The amounts recognised in the statcment of financial position are as follows:

Present valuc of scheme liabilitics

Defined bencfit obligation

Changes in the defined benefit obligation arc as follows:

Present valuc at 1 November 2017
Interest cost

~ Employer contributions

Change to assumptions

Present value at 31 October 2018

Principal actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date arc as follows:

Discount rate
Mcdical expenscs inflation

Post retirement mortality assumptions

Montality assumptions are thc same as thosc used for the staff pension scheme.
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24 Called up share capital
. Group and company

Allotted, called up and fully paid sharcs

2018 2017
No. 000 £000 No. 600 £000
Ordinary of £1 cach , 7,103 7,103 7,103 7,103
A Ordiniry of £0.0001 cach , .. 1us8 L 1218 v 1
L 7,104 14321 7,104

Rights, preferences and restrictions

Ordinary shares have the following rights, preferences and restrictions:

The holders of the ordinary shares arc entitled to dividends in proportion 10 the number of shares they hold. Dividends per
share class do not have to be paid in cqual measure.

A Ordinary shares have the following rights, preferences and restrictions:
“The holders of the A ordinary shares arc cntitled to dividends in proportion to the number of shares they hold. Dividends per
sharc class do not have to be paid in cqual measure. The A ordinary sharcs do not carry any voiing rights.

25 Rescrves

Group
Share capital

The two classes of shares and their rights arce described in noe 24,

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserves represents the price of the Group's re-purchase of its own shares.
Other reserves

Other reserves comprise undistrilbumt_\fjc profits and unrcalised gains and losscs on exchange. Also included in other reserves
is a hedging reserve which is uscd 1o record transactions arising from the Group's cash flow hedging arrangements.

Profit and loss account
The profit and loss account represents the Group's total retained earnings available for distribution.

The changes to cach componcent of cquity resulting from items of other comprehensive income for the current year were as
follows:

Profit and loss

Other reserves account Total

2018 £000 £ 000 £000
Unrcalised gain on cash flow hedges 2,902 - 2,902
Forcign currcncy translation tosscs 861 750 1,611
Remeasuremcrit losses on pension and
post-retirement medical schemes net of -
deferred 1ax ’ ) ) - _(754) ) (754)

~ ‘ 3,763 @) 3,759
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The changes to cach component of equity resulting from items of other comprehensive income for the prior ycar were as
follows: '

Profit and loss

Other reserves account Total
2017 £000 £000 £000
Unrealised gain/(loss) on cash flow
hedges 217 (135) 82
Foreign currency translation gains (7,568) - (7,568)
Remeasurcmient losses on pension and
post-retirement medical schemes net of
defcrred tax =~ ) : - 37,361 37,361

(7,351) 37,226 29,875

Company
Share capital

The two classes of shares and their nights are described in noic 24.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserves represcnls the price of the Company's re-purchase of its own shares.
Profit and loss account

The profit and loss account represents the Company's total retained camings available for distribution.

The changes to each component of equity resulting from items of other comprehensive income for the current year were as
follows:

Profit and loss

account Total
2018 . £000 £ 000
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit pension schemes net
of deferred tax (180) (180)

The changes to each componcent of equity resulting from items of other comprehensive income for the prior year were as
follows: :

Profit and loss

account Total
2017 £ 000 £000
Remeasurcment gains on defined benefit pension schemes nct
of deferred tax 38,052 38,052
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26 Loans and borrowings

Group
2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Current loans and borrowings
Finance Icascs 4,145 2,299
Scnior loans . 4,484 ) 8,007
8,629 10,306
Group
2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Non-current loans and borrowings
Finance lcascs 5,360 4 885
Senior loans ’ 134,554 169,336
139,914 174,221
Group
Includcd in the loans and borrowings are the following amounts duc afier more than five years:
2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Scnior loans after more than five ycars by instalments 107,640 125,589

Senior loans after five ycars
The Group has the following Senior lvans:

£Nil (2017 - £9,114,000) taken out by a subsidiary - Autolink Concessionaires (A19) Limited. The Scnior loan accrucs
intcrest on a semi-anaual basis at 0.9% above LIBOR plus MLA costs. The Scnior loan was repaid during the year.

£Nil (2017 - £25,133,000) taken out by a subsidiary - Autolink Concessionaires (A19) Limited. The Scnior loan accrues
intcrest on a semi-annual basis at 6.748%. The Senior loan was repaid during the year.

£32,347,000 (2017 - £36,507,000) taken out by a subsidiary - Pinnacle Schools (Gateshead) Limited. The Senior loan
accrucs interest on a semi-annual basis at 0.95% above LIBOR pius MLA costs. The margin varics but will not exceed
0.95%. The Senior loan is duc for repayment in 2032 and is sccured over the asscts of 1he subsidiary.

£30,050,000 (2017 - £31,070,000) taken out by a subsidiary - SRM (Redcar & Cleveland) Limited. The Scnior loan accrues
intcrest on a scmi-annual basis at 0.6% above LIBOR plus reserve assct costs. The Scnior loan is due for repayment in 2037
and is securcd over the assets of the subsidiary.

£67,196,000 (2017 - £71,449,000) taken out by a subsidiary - Sir Robert McAlpine Road Holdings Limited. The Scnior loan
accrucs interest on a semi-annual basis at 4% plus annual RPL The Scnior loan is dué for repayment in 2027 and is secured
over the asscts of the subsidiary.

£5,000,000 (2017 - £5,000,000) taken out by a subsidiary - Cardiff Gatc Busincss Park Limited. £4,000,000 of the Scnior
loan accrues intercst on a semi-annual basis at 5.1% and £1,000,000 of the Senior loan accrues interest on a scmi annual

basis at 4.0% above LIBOR. Thc Senior loan is due for repayment in 2020 and is sccured over the assets of the subsidiary.

All Senior loans arc repayable by non-cqual instalments, except for the £5,000,000 held by Cardiff Gateé Business Park
Limited, which will bc repaid in full on the repayment date.
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27 Obligations under leases and hire purchase contracts

Group

Finance leascs

Finance lcases rclale to the purchase of cranes used in the Group's construction activities. Cranes are classified as property,

plant and equipment in note 14. There are no contingent rental, rencwal or purchase option clauses.

The total future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2018 2017
£000 £000
Not later than one ycar : 4,145 2,610
Later than one year and not later than five years ' . ) 6,031 5,154
10,176 7,764
Opcrating leases
The total futurc minimum leasc payments arc as follows:
2018 2017
£000 £000
Not lal_cr than one yecar 4,100 2,567
Later than one year and not later than five years 5,940 3,814
Later than five years . 575 3,820
10,615 10,201

The amount of non-cancellable operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the year was £10,478,000 (2017 -

£12,073,000).

Opcrating leascs - lessor
The total future minimum leasc payments arc as follows:

2018 2017
£000 £000
Not later than onc year 96 146
Latcr than one year and not later than five years 1,330 1,330
Later than five ycars 562 569
) 1,988 2,045
Total contingent rents recognised as income in the period arc £1,571,000 (2017 - £1,508,000).
There arc no éontingent rental, renewal, purchase options, escalation clauscs or restrictions imposed.
Company
Opcrating leases
The total future minimum lease payments are as follows:
2018 2017
£000 £000
Not later than onc year 232 232
Later than one year and not later than five years 367 599
599 831

The amount of non-cancellable operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the yecar was £279,000 (2017 -

£279,000).
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28 Contingent liabilitics

Group
There were contingencics in respect of the following:

Guarantecs of contract performance bonds given in the normal coursce of busingss;
Guarantees of performance of subsidiary and joint arrangements under funding and lcasing agreements; and
Completed and uncompleted contracts.

It is impracticable io cstimate the financial cffect, tih)ing or probability of payments in relation to the above ilcms.

The Group has guaranteed the future luschold rental payments for one of its joint ventures, The contmgcnl liability expired
in St.pu.mbcr 2018. The maximum Imbllnly at 31 October 2018 was £Nil (2017 - £794,000).

29 Rclated party transactions

Group

There were transactions amounting to £13m (2017 - £19.0m) in. respect of construction and other contracts on norma)
commercial terms with various joint arrangements, of which £8. 2m (2017 - £2.2m) was owing at the year end and included
within debtors duc in {css than one year (note 19).

There were (ransaclions amounting to £3.1m (2017 - £2.3m) in respect of construction and other contructs on normal
commercial terms wilh joint ventures -and unlisted investments, of which £0.1m (2017 - £0.1m) was owing at the year cnd
and included within debtors duc in less than one ycar (note 19).

Included within other financial asscts (notc 17) arc loan balances of £3.5m (2047 - £3.6m) and unlistcd sccunlu.,s of £12.4m
(2017 - £12.4m) owing from McAulay (Tudor Housc) Limited and McAulay (Market Buildings) Limited respectively. The
loan balances have a fair value of £4.0m (2017 - £4.2m). The unlisied sccuritics have an impairment against them of £1.0m
(2017 - £1.6m). A number of Direclors have an ifiterest in both of these companics.

At the year end, BCM McAlpine Limited owed the Group £57.6m (2017 - £52.8m). During the year no recoveries were
received. (2017 - £4.5m). During the year the Group increased part of the provns:on against this balance by £5.1m (2017 -
reversed the provision against this balance by £6.2m). BCM McAlpinc Limited is a’jointly controlled enlity.

Included within turmover were management fees of £0.1m (2017 - £0.3m) recéived from various joint ventures, of which £nil
(2017 - £nil) was outstanding at the year end.

Company
The company’s rclated party transactions were with wholly-owned Subsidiaries and so have not been disclosed.
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30 Financial instruments

Group .
Financial
assets Derivatives
at fair value at fair value Financial
Loans through through Dcrivatives liabilitics at

Categorisation of financial and profit profit used for amortised
instruments reccivables or loss or loss hedging cost Total
2018 . £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 . £000 £000
Tradc receivables 166,314 - - - - 166,314
Other reccivables 18,177 - - - - 18,177
Short-term deposits 23,188 - - - - 23,188
Joint ownership propertics - 1,223 - - - 1,223
Loans - 3,648 - - - 3,648
PPP financial asscts - 126,594 . - - 126,594
Inflation swaps - - 2,413 - - 2413
Interest rate swaps - - - (18,187) - (18,187)
Scnior loans - - - - (139,038) (139,038)
Finance lcascs - - - - (9,505) (9,505)
Trade creditors - - - - (215,698) (215,698)
Accruals - - - - (125,390) (125,390)
Other creditors - - - - 2,751 (2,751)

207,679 131,465 2,413 (18,187) (492,382) (169,012)

Financial
assets Derivatives
at fair value at fair value Financial
Loans through through Derivatives liabilities at

Categorisation of financial and profit profit used for amortised
instruments receivables or loss or loss hedging cost Total
2017 £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000
Trade receivables 169,242 - - - - 169,242
Other reccivables 31,512 - - - - 31,512
Short-term deposits 83,506 - - . - - 83,506
Joint ownership propertics - 1,651 - - - 1,651
Loans - 4,035 - - - 4,035
PPP financial assets - 127,696 - - - 127,696
Inflation swaps - ) - 2,793 - - 2,793
Interest rate swaps - - - (21,089) - (21,089)
Senior loans - - - - (177,344) (177,344)
Finance leascs - - - - (7,184) (7,184)
Trade creditors - - - - (236,802) (236,802)
Accruals - - - - (113,069) (113,069)
Other creditors - - - - (4,949) (4,949)

284,260 133,382 2,793 (21,089) (539,348) (140,002)
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Financial asscts measurcd at fair value

PPP financial assets .

Asscts constructed by the Group's PPP concession companics are classified as financial asscts which arc held at fair value
with changes being recorded in profit or loss. During the operational phase, fair value is determined by discounting the
future cash flows allocated to the financial assct using discount rates bascd on long-term gilt rates adjusted for the risk levels
associated with the asscts. During the year there was an increasc in gilt rates resulting in a fair valuc loss being taken through
profit or loss.

J

The adjustment for risk level premiums vary between 1.5% and 2.9% dependent on the time to maturity and the jurisdiction
of the asset.

The fair valuc is an assct of £126,594,000 (2017 - £127,696,000) and the change in value included in profit or loss is a loss
of £1,102,000 (2017 - £1,746,000).

Derivative financial instritments - inflation swap

The Group has entered.into inflation swaps to pay income at RP1 and reccive income at a fixed rate of 3.445% for maturitics
ranging beiween 2018 and 2038. The swaps arc based on a principal semi-annual amount of £778,000. The fair valuc has
been determined by discounting the future cash flows of the inflation swaps.

The instrument is used 10 hedge the Group's exposure to RPI on income relating to a subsidiary's PPP unitary charge income.
Cash flows on the income and the inflation swap are paid semi-annually.

The fair value is an assct ol £2,413,000 (2017 - £2,793,000) and the change in value included in profit or loss is a loss of
£380,000 (2017 - gain of £861.000)

Cash flow hedges

Interest rate swap

The Group has cniered into a cash flow hedge to reccive interest at floating rates of interest and pay interest at fixed rates of
between 4.41% and 5.03% for malurities ranging between 2018 and 2037.

The hedging arrangement fixes the total interest payable on the Scnior loans to between 5.21% and 5.63%.

During 2018, a hedging gain of £2,902,000 (2017 - £217,000) net of deferred tax was recognised in other comprehensive
income for changes in the fair value of the interest rate $wap.

The swaps arc bascd on a principal amount of £67,558,000, part of the principal amount of the Group's Senior loan facilitics,
and mature on the same datces as the Scnior loans.

The fair valuc liability of the financial instruments designated as hedging instruments at 31 October 2018 is £18,187,000
(2017 - £21,089,000).

The instruments arc used 10 hedge the Group's exposure to interest rate movements on the Scnior loans.
Cash flows on the Senior loans and the interest raté swaps arc paid semi-annually.
The amount reclassificd from equity to profit or loss forthe year is £Nil (2017 - £Nil).

The amount of any cxcess of the fair valuc of the hedging instrument over the change in the fair value of the expected cash
flows that was recognised in profit or loss for the year is £Nil (2017 - £Nil).

31 Parcont and ultimate parent undertaking

The ultimate controlling party is The McAlpine Partnership Trust, of which certain trustecs are Dircctors of the Company.
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32 Subsidiaries and related undertakings

All subsidiarics, associaled undertakings and other significant holdings are shown below. Except where otherwise stated, the
companics arc incorporated in Great Britain and registered at Eaton Court, Maylands Avenue, Hemel Hempstead,
Hertfordshire, HP2 7TR. The subsidiarics marked by * have taken advantage of the exémplion from an audit in accordance
with Scclion 479A of thé Companics Act 2006. The Company has provided a guarantce to each of these subsidiarics in
compliance with Section 479C. The cntities marked by » are held dircctly by the Company. The entitics marked by # arc
cither jointly controlled entitics or associates and their results and financial position arc included in these consolidaled
financial statcments using the equity method of accounting.

Registered  Country of

company Incorporation

Company number / registration Interest in shares
Civil engineering and building

Banksidc Electrical Contractors Limited 00970503 * 100% ordinary
British Contracts Company Limitcd 00168655 100% ordinary
Derby Joinery Limited 01615045 100% ordinary
McAlpine Limited Cayman Islands  100% ordinary
McAlpine Offshore Limited 100% ordinary
Partnership Insurance Company Cayman Islands  100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine Limited 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine (Holdings) Limited # 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine Management Contractors Limited 01157770 * 100% ordinary
St. Blaisc (1998) Limited 81.68% ordinary
BCM McAlpinc Limited # Bermuda 40% ordinary
McAlpine (Cayman) Limited # Cayman Islands  40% ordinary

McAlpine Limited's registered address is 190 Elgin Avenue, Grand Cayman, KY 1-9005.

Partnership Insurance Company's registered address is 62 Forum Lane, 3rd Floor, Camana Bay, PO Box 30600, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1203.

BCM McAlpinc Limited's registered address is 48 St. John's Road, Pembroke, Bermuda, HM 07.

McAlpine (Cayman) Limited's registered address is 190 Elgin Avenue, Grand Cayman, KY1-9005.
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Registered

company
Company number
Property development and investments
Abacus Developments Limiied 01038942
Abacus Projccts Limited 01460919
Abacus Property Holdings Limited
ADL Veatures Limited 02891389
Axis Land Partnerships Limited 10284645
Brickworth Developments Limited A 00777501
Curdiff Gate Business Park Limited 02617988
Concent Bay Limiled 05227029
ConstructEncrgy Limited 01498746
McAlpine Park Lane Inc.
McAlpinc Propertics Limited
MC Alpine Enterprises Limited
Merlot Developments Limited 06048528
Miltons Shoot 2011 Limited
Oak Couvlgl Estates (Langstone, Mon.) Limited 00869982
Oak Count Management Company (Coventry) Limited
Oakus Developments Limited 04452226
Raglan Development Limited 09854957
Robert McAlpine Enierprises Limited
Sir Robert McAlpinc Enterprises Limited A
Sir Robert McAlpine Healthcare Limited.
White Rock Business Park Limited
Tempus Ten (Management) Limited#
Cable Swan Limitcd# 10390283
CEPF Il Charles Strect Manchester Developments Limited# 11168796

EHC International Limited #

EHC Marrakech Limited #

EHC Malaysia Limited #

Endcavour UK 4 Limitcd #

Jersey Waterfront Group Holdings 1 Limited #
Jerscy Waterfront Group Holdings 1! Limited #
Jerscy Waterfront Group Holdings 1 Limited #
Jersey Waterfront Hotel Holding Limited #
Jersey Waterfront Hotel Management Limited #
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Country of
Incorporation

/ registration

US.A.

Cayman {slands

R

Jersey
Jersey
Jerscy
Jersey

Jersey

Intcrest in shares

100% ordinary-
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% orciinnry
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
82% ordinary
54% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
S0% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
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Registered Country of

company Incorporation
Company ) number / registration Interest in shares
Property development and investments (continued...)
Jerscy Walterfront Hotel (Central Apartments) Limited # Jersey 50% ordinary
Jersey Walterfront Hotel Development Limited # Jersey 50% ordinary
McGreen Estates Limited # 50% ordinary
MSDI. Holdings Limited# 11357148 50% ordinary
MSDL Propentics Limited# 10865339 50% ordinary
Red Kite Sccuritics Limited # 50% ordinary
Scarmac Limited # 50% ordinary
Springﬁcld Village Estate Limitcd# 11164792 50% ordinary
STEP Springficld Village Limited# 11153704 50% ordinary
UK LP Gore Strect Limited# 50% ordinary
Consortium 220 LLP # 33.33% ordinary
UBW Limited # Cayman Islands 20% ordinary
Walton Wagner Limited # 20% ordinary

McAlpinc Park Lanc [ac's registercd address is 3200 Bailey Lane, Suite 199, Naples, Fl. 34105.

McAlpinc Propertics Limited's registered address is 4th floor Queengate Building, 113 South Church Street, PO Box 1994,
Grand Cayman.

Miltons Shoot 2011 Limited's registered address is Calyx House, South Road, Taunton, Somerset, TAI 3DU.

Endecavour UK 4 Limited's registered address is 11 Elmbank Street, Glasgow, United Kingdom, G2 4PB.

Jerscy Waterfront Group Holdings 1 Limited and all Jersey Waterfront group companies registered addresses arc The
Radisson Blu, Rue dc L'Etau, St Helier, Jersey, JE2 3WF.

Scarmac Limited's registered address is Europa House, 20 Esplanade, Scarborough, North Yorkshire, YO11 2AQ.

UK LP Gore Strect Limited's registered address is Carlyle House, 78 Chorley New Road, Bolion, Lancashire, BL1 4BY.
Consortium 220 LLP's registered address is Duddingston House, Milton Road West, Edinburgh, EHI5 1RB.

UBW Limited's registered address is 2nd floor Harbour Place, PO 472103 South Church Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106.
Walton Wagner Limited's registered address is Portland House 21 Narborough Road, Cosby, Leicester, LE9 1TA.

Registered Country of

company Incorporation
Company number { registration Interest in shares
PPP investments
Aura Leaming Communitics Limited ' 100% ordinary
Autolink Concessionaires (A19) Limited 100% ordinary
Autolink Holdings (A19) Limited 100% ordinary
Pinnacle Schools (Gateshead) Holdings Limited 100% ordinary
Pinnacle Schools (Gateshcad) Limited 100% ordinary
Pinnacle Schools Limited 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine Capital Ventures Limited 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpinc Healthcare (Dawlish) Lim.iled 03319534 * 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpinc Road Holdings Limited 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine (A19) Limited 100% ordinary
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Country of

Incorporation
Company / registration Interest in sharces
PPP investments (contin'ucd..\.)) '
Sir Robert McAlpine (M6) Limited ) 100% subsidiary
SRM (Redear & Cleveland) Holdings 100% subsidiary
SRM (Redear & Cleveland) Limited 100% subsidiary
Paget Health Services:(Holdings) Limited # Bermwuda 58% ordinary
Paget Health Services Limited # Bermuda 58% ordinary
Endcavour UK 4 Limited # . 50% ordinary
Aultolink Conccssionaires (M6) plc # 19.5% ordinary
Autolink Holdings (M6) Limitcd # 19.5% ordinary

Paget Health Scrvice (Holdings) Limited and Paget Health Service Limited's registered address is Victoria Place, 31 Vicloria
Street, Hamilton, HMI0, Bermuda.
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